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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if you have a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we will not be interrupted. And also when speaking, speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And I'd like to mention that all Members of the Board have visited all of the sites that we will be discussing this evening. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



MICHAEL MAHER



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 7:03 PM)


ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:03 PM) 



JOHN PAGE JR./JPJR HOLDINGS, LLC. 
ROUTE 32 / CHESTNUT LANE / 







     ROCKWOOD DRIVE, NBGH







(75-1-36.2) B ZONE & R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking a use variance to build a single-family residence in a B-Zone.  

Chairperson Cardone: Okay if there's anyone here this evening that's interested in the Rockwood Drive subdivision (John Page Jr./JPJR Holdings, LLC.) we will not be discussing that this evening. That is going to be held over until the March meeting. I will read the letter that I received: 

Dear Chairperson Cardone and Zoning Board Members, on behalf of the applicant for the above referenced project Hudson Land Design is requesting that the continuation of the public hearing for the above-referenced project that is scheduled for this evening be adjourned to your March 22 meeting. The reason for this request is we are still gathering information to determine whether or not the application should be withdrawn or if the applicant is going to pursue the use variance. We expect to be meeting with the Town Supervisor, Town engineer and Town attorney in the near future to help us make this decision and will then be in a position to make a decision regarding this open application. Your anticipated cooperation with respect to this matter is greatly appreciated. Should you have any questions or require additional information please feel free to call me. Sincerely, Jon Bodendorf

So if anyone is interested in that application we will not be hearing that this evening.
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ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:05 PM) 



STACY HAWKINS



78 BALMVILLE ROAD, NBGH







(43-3-47) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to keep a prior built accessory structure for a two-lot subdivision.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant Stacy Hawkins. 

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, February 14th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, February 15th. This applicant sent out thirty-one registered letters, twenty-four were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Ms. Hawkins: Good evening.

Chairperson Cardone: Please identify yourself for the record.  

Ms. Hawkins: I'm Stacy Hawkins and I am at 78 Balmville Road. The reason that I am here is applying for a variance for a pole barn that exists on my property, about halfway down the property between, it runs from Grand Avenue to Balmville Road and the reason that I'm applying for this is because we are looking to subdivide off the bottom portion of the the a… survey that you see them and we need that variance obviously to a…to get that taken care of. The reason I believe it should be granted is because there really is not any a… obstruction whatsoever a…to any of my other neighbors a…the one neighbor that it does affect a…from a visual standpoint also has the same situation on their property in three different locations so I don't think it should be any big deal a…and in addition a… As I said there's no impact and it's definitely precedes pre…what's the word I'm looking for…predates, I guess, predates my purchase of the property a…we purchased at approximately 10 years ago and a… it's been there, I was told by the previous owner, since the 1940s so…

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  

Ms. Hawkins: I should be more specific and say that the variance is for, you know you have the paperwork in front of you, but there are three poles that basically sit right on the property line. 

Mr. Hughes: There’s another building on his property referred to as the carriage house.

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron can you pull your mic in more? 

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thanks.

Mr. Hughes: …that's part of the same parcel?

Ms. Hawkins: A…yes.

Mr. Hughes: And what's the purpose of that building and how is it inhabited at present?

Ms. Hawkins: There is a garage that sits below a…that basically is in the same footprint so it's a three car garage and there is a…a…an apartment, a legal apartment above it and it is currently occupied.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry? You’re aware of this apartment that the lady speaks of above the garage that is in this complex?

Mr. Canfield: Your question is Ron, am I aware that there is an apartment over that garage?

Mr. Hughes: That's occupied illegally?

Mr. Canfield: No I'm not.

Mr. Hughes: I have in front of me… 

Mr. Canfield: …that's not to say it is or it is not legal I'm just not aware of it at this time. 

Mr. Hughes: Okay, let's make sure that I've got the right spot here. 43-3-47, I have a piece of paper in front of me the file date of 6-25-84 and the expiration date of 12-26-85 where the remarks for the Building Permit on this particular building. It says that the conversion of the carriage house to caretaker's headquarters approved 6-84 never to be rented. C.O. 3321 in ‘88. 

Ms. Hawkins: What had happened was there is a…a deed restriction or removal that was taken off of there when we purchased the house and everything to the best of my knowledge was satisfied at that time. So there may be, you have a copy that deed right? Somebody has a copy of the deed? 

Mr. Canfield: The assessor may have a copy of the deed.

Ms. Hawkins: Okay so a…that deed was changed at that time when we took a…or I should say that it restriction I don't know what the proper wording is.

Mr. Donovan: Just so I'm clear the structure to which you refer is that shown on this map as a…?

Ms. Hawkins: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …two-story wood siding with the garage?

Ms. Hawkins: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: That’s the one. 

Mr. Donovan: And so but the… The variance in question is a pre-existing barn that is shown here as a w-a-l-l-e-s-s ‘walless’ barn? 

Ms. Hawkins: Well yes, correct.

Mr. Donovan: And that's a pre-existing condition which because of the subdivision it’s a change in circumstance which requires an application to this Board.

Ms. Hawkins: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: There's a couple of other…

Mr. Donovan: I just want to be clear that a…the instance of…to which you’re referring doesn’t apply to the application before the Board for the variance.

Mr. Hughes: I'm not even sure that the Buildings Permits restrictions pertinent to the approval of the variance would even be a deed restriction but I do know that there were other deed restrictions on this very property as well which a survey note number 10 on your map right in front of you would explain it a lot better than I can put into words where it describes that they are only allowed to have, isn't this residentially…?

Ms. Hawkins: I can explain to you why, what had happened was there was a caretaker that had a life estate on the property where we purchased it so the previous owner not wanting the a…in order to get rid of the life estate and to be able to get financing for this project a… not this project but we couldn't get a mortgage so what wound up happening was that a… Am I talking too fast?

Mr. Hughes: You’re…you’re getting yourself crazy, yeah relax.

Ms. Hawkins: Oh no I am… I am relaxed I'm just not feeling well so I apologize. The… there had to be a… a… I guess a permitability…I don't even know what the right word is for this but what had happened was the bank required the previous owner to a…remove the deed restriction but allowing it such that we could do because it is such a large parcel there…allowing us to do one parcel by itself and then one parcel that would encompass the carriage house because if we couldn’t get rid of the life estate, the only way to do that would be to thoroughly subdivide the property so that we could mortgage the part of it that wasn't encumbered by the deed restrictions.

Mr. Hughes: So is it true that this property has a restriction on it that you can’t create more than two lots and…?

Ms. Hawkins: That is correct and one of them has to be a…the…the hold onto the carriage the piece that…that in…a…

Mr. Hughes: Okay so then from what I'm looking at in print here on your map according to your survey, how are you going to include that two-story building with one parcel one? You going to keep that one big chunk?

Ms. Hawkins: Yeah, we're not…we are not going to subdivide off the…the barn in and of itself or the a…carriage house. We are only subdividing off the a…the lower portion. 

Mr. Hughes: Okay so then if this were to be…be approved this would be the last move that you could make. There is no further subdivision allowed.

Ms. Hawkins: No there is one…there is one more as long as it included the carriage house.

Mr. Hughes: Okay, everybody see what I'm getting at now?

Chairperson Cardone: I see what you're saying.

Mr. Hughes: This was…this was Dr. Overton's property way, way back?

Ms. Hawkins: Correct, we bought it from his son.

Mr. Hughes: So that now everybody's aware of all the things that can go on here I want to refer to our attorney and see are we treading into waters where we shouldn’t go by ruling on this tonight without seeing what it has to say with the deed restrictions all the way around this project? 

Chairperson Cardone: I think that Mr. Canfield also had something to say.

Mr. Canfield: Well I had a question pretty much for Dave. A…I know what my opinion has been in the past but maybe you can shed some light on it. What is the municipality’s capability of enforcing deed restrictions?

Mr. Donovan: Well private deed restriction can be enforced privately; the Municipality does not have standing to enforce a private deed restriction. The…the issue that I’m not clear on though as this Ron goes through this we talk about the referral from the Planning Board is relative to the walless barn and its location or its proximity to the sideline what about the issue of, I assume that the other two story wood siding shown as a two-story wood siding is a dwelling? Someone lives in this house.

Ms. Hawkins: I have a renter. It's my property, it's not private.

Mr. Donovan: So we're in the R-1 zone which I read as single-family dwellings not to exceed one dwelling unit per lot, is there some other approval here that we’re not aware of? If you know the answer to that Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: Other than it's a pre-existing condition. 

Mr. Donovan: But…

Mr. Canfield: I know what you're saying.

Mr. Donovan: And I guess that's the point, so is the barn is a pre-existing condition that's why they’re here. 

Mr. Canfield: It's lost his protection because of the subdivision.

Mr. Donovan: So why were they not referred for the dwelling unit two dwelling units on one lot?

Mr. Hughes: Well they might not have picked it up but back to the chronology of where we're going here we've got too many things in the formula already let streamline and stay in three of the categories that we’re playing in here. Number one I agree with what you're saying about unenforceability through the Municipality it's a civil matter and those things don't turn out very civil I can tell you that. The second thing that we’re looking at another conduit is a Permit was issued when I believe that pre-existing nonconforming lost its standing when that was turned into a process and a Building Permit and that was in ‘88 from what I'm reading here. No I'm sorry ‘84 and ‘85. Then in ’88 there is a C.O. that's issued with the caveat that this was never to be rented and I can understand what you're saying that if you get rid of the caretaker by process or retirement or whatever happened that's in another conduit altogether. We have three different things going on here. So now that everybody is aware of how many of these things exist and the deed restrictions we can’t get involved with the deed restrictions only your neighbors can do that. But as far as you’re presuming that this is grandfathered I don't believe so. It lost its standing when this Building Permit was issued so you bought something that maybe you were uninformed about and it doesn't wear as well as you think it does. Now moving forward to what you have to do now you're saying you can make one more subdivision after this move how are you going to incorporate that dwelling that's rented out now with that other lot without moving it? You got the main house here, you got the bulk of your property here and you got the illegally rented apartment over here. 

Ms. Hawkins: What you might not see on that is that there is…right now and there are already two separately deeded parcels on there so I still have the two left that could be subdivided.

Mr. Hughes: And where might that be?

Ms. Hawkins: One would be the a… the carriage house and then the second is the bottom portion of the what we call it the field that’s below.

Mr. Hughes: So the part with the walless barn is…?

Ms. Hawkins: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: All right so then…

Ms. Hawkins: That is…that is not incorporated in the subdivision lot that we’re looking to do.

Mr. Hughes: Okay but again I guess my question remains the same maybe I didn't ask it properly. How are you going to get that barn on lot one when you're saying you're dividing the property this way…?

Ms. Hawkins: Can I show you that on the map?

Mr. Hughes: Sure… that might make it easier.

Ms. Hawkins: Might that be easier?

Mr. Hughes: … that might make it easier.

Ms. Drake: You can bring the microphone up with you. 

Mr. Hughes: If you'd like to put this up on the board here and maybe you can help the public out with this description as well.

Ms. Hawkins: So there is this lot here that already is a separate lot in and of itself.

Mr. Hughes: And you own that lot as well?

Ms. Hawkins: Yes, yes. So what I'm attempting to do here is to take this lot which mirrors this and turn this into one separate lot that still gives me the opportunity to…to subdivide off one other parcel here and if I do that I do have to include the…what they call here the two-story wood sided with garage. This has nothing to do with it. This came up as an issue because it sits on the property line so…

Mr. Hughes: So again where would you make that line where you could make that third lot?

Ms. Hawkins: We probably have to…well not probably because we share the driveway so it would go here and in the event, you know, we ever wanted to get rid of that but I see no reason that I would want to.

Mr. Hughes: But you've got to have four sides to each lot or some kind of a configuration when you show me one line there.

Ms. Hawkins: Oh, I see that I was not aware of.

Mr. Hughes: Is your representative; is your architect in the room?

Ms. Hawkins: No he was not able to make it tonight. He's with another project as well. I’d have to speak with them because I was not aware of that and we didn't take that into consideration although it could be done this way with the sharing of the driveway.

Mr. Hughes: Well I don't know if you have a substandard lot by doing that and if that's unapprovable then we can't do this process. We don't want to see you coming back here again and again because we’re uninformed and you don’t know what you have to have.

Ms. Hawkins: Yes, well obviously…

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you hold that microphone up?

Ms. Hawkins: Oh I'm sorry. Can I postpone till next month? 

Mr. McKelvey: We could hold the hearing over. 

Mr. Hughes: We? Our Chair lady…?

Chairperson Cardone: We could on the vote, yes.

Ms. Hawkins: Simply because I need to get some more information since that's…

Mr. Donovan: And I…

Ms. Hawkins: … I didn't know about.

Mr. Donovan: …I need to be clear that I am concerned I don't know why the Planning Board didn't pick up the two houses on the lot. I don't know if there is some other approval for that that we need to know about otherwise this Board…that would require variance.

Ms. Hawkins: Okay.

Mr. Hughes: Grace we have a…

Chairperson Cardone: I think that Mr. Canfield has something to say.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah just I think that Dave is 100% right. Re-reviewing the minutes from the…

Mr. Donovan: Everybody so far Ron said I was 100% right now Jerry said it was 100% right so no one can disagree with me.

Mr. Canfield: You're off to a good start and that's only the first applicant too.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah the Planning Board minutes of the, I believe, first appearance before the Board a…July 7 of 2011 the applicant's representative at the time from Hudson Land Design he makes mention of the existing structure and some accessory structures. He does not indicate that there was a second residence on the property. Okay. And I don't indicate that that can or cannot be a problem just saying that I think a…on the Planning Board's behalf I don't believe that they were aware that there was a second residence there. I think they may have viewed this structure as an accessory structure perhaps another barn or something and it did not raise a red flag because of the separation a…lot coverage, like density because it's a 5+ acre lot. There aren’t any other issues. A…so I believe Dave is 100% right it's an area that needs to be addressed somehow it needs to be added. You’re obviously going to need it a variance for that as well. And how the Board chooses to address that at this time I'm not certain. It's definitely an amended application or should be. 

Mr. Hughes: Grace…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Hughes: …I see that we have people that are from the neighborhood do we allow…?

Chairperson Cardone: Right I was waiting until the questions from the Board were finished. So if anyone else in the Board has any questions or comments. If not then I can ask for any questions or comments from the public? Please state your name and speak into the mic.

Mr. Burke: Hi I'm Jonathan Burke hello everybody. Can I show you guys some pictures of this barn? Can't we just dispose of whether the barn needs it notwithstanding all the other stuff? Are we here about the barn? I wasn't asking you Stacy I was talking to the Board.

Chairperson Cardone: Right we are here, we are here the barn but in looking at it it appears that another variance is needed. 

Mr. Burke: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: So that's what the discussion got little sidetracked with that but if you have any information about the barn…

Mr. Burke: Can I show you guys these pictures?

Chairperson Cardone: Sure. 

(Mr. Burke approached the Board with the pictures)

Mr. Burke: Who wants to go first?

Chairperson Cardone: Start here. 

Mr. Burke: Those are all the view from my property of the barn.

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you go back to the mic Jonathan? Thank you.

Mr. Burke: So that's out on the back of my backyard where the…my swimming pool is and where we spend most of our time in the summer. I think this is just a great occasion to knock that building down. It's…it's downtrodden, it's a…there's animals living in there, it's, I mean it's, if you look at the pictures you can see it's time for that barn to go bye-bye.

(Inaudible) 

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. You have to talk into the microphone because it's being recorded.  Thank you.

Mr. Burke: Because I don't see any way to move it that would make any kind of sense and it's not the kind of…it's not a structure that needs to be salvaged so that's my thoughts.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay.

Ms. Hawkins: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry is that microphone on Jerry? Did you shut it off?

Ms. Hawkins: Yes. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Okay, it's not picking up.

Ms. Hawkins: I certainly don't disagree with you Jon. 

Mr. Burke: So anyway I think the pictures speak for themselves…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, thank you.

Mr. Burke: …and you guys can probably form a judgment from that.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anyone else from the public that would like to speak? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: And why did you want to maintain this barn?

Ms. Hawkins: There was some question as to whether or not we should rebuild, if we should if there was a way to get past this then we were going to contemplate doing so.

Chairperson Cardone: But if you rebuild why not rebuild it where it should be?

Ms. Hawkins: A…simply because of the cost because this is really big and because if we didn't have to actually move the whole thing there were minor changes that can be done to it to (inaudible)…

Mr. Manley: The question that I have is if you…if your intent was to rebuild that particular barn being that it…it appears like it's exactly on the property line, is that correct?

Ms. Hawkins: Yes.

Mr. Manley: How would you get to the back part of the barn to actually…?

Ms. Hawkins: There's actually access from Grand Avenue down below so there's a…there‘s gates, there's a chain-link fence over part of it and you can drive up from the back.

Mr. Manley: On your property? Or would you have to go…?

Ms. Hawkins: Yes, no no...basically own from Balmville Road to Grand Avenue so you go all the way down.

Mr. Manley: Okay but I guess the question is how do you get to the back part of the barn, the back wall?

Mr. Hughes: Look at your map and look for the chain-link area Jim.

Ms. Hawkins: And it's accessible from the inside.

Mr. Manley: So there would be no need to get up to the neighbors property to any maintenance or repairs to the barn?

Ms. Hawkins: No because you can do everything from inside.

Chairperson Cardone: I wouldn't think so if you're doing anything structural which it looked like from the pictures it would need.

Ms. Hawkins: A…there’s some things, there needs to be new fencing on the inside, there a…needs to be some minor repairs on the roof and you definitely can do that from the top.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Excuse me. You have to go to the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: You have to speak into the microphone. Ron, when you finish with those just pass them back to the Jim can take a look.
Mr. Hughes: You wouldn’t want to rent a room there I wouldn't think.

Ms. Hawkins: No I definitely would not. No. 

Mr. Hughes: So Counsel, would the appropriate thing be to leave the Hearing open and ask if there is any more information from the other Boards that have had an involvement with this? They are…they are unaware of the situations that were brought up tonight.

Mr. Donovan: Well I think in terms of the review our Board we need information as to whether or not the two residences, two separate units on the lot have been…have received any approval? If they have not received any approval to allow two residences on one lot then that the subject of a variance because the subdivision trumps any pre-existing protection. Now the…the just to be clear the issue in my mind is, another issue unfortunately for you, is whether or not the two units constitutes a use variance or an area variance?

Ms. Hawkins: So I’ve got to find that out?

Mr. Donovan: We all need to find that out its important.

Mr. Hughes: Can we make a list of unknowns so that everybody knows what we're looking for exactly, the neighbors, the owner and the other Boards that may involve themselves?

Mr. Donovan: Well I think relative to this barn it's pretty…has there been any approval issued by the Town of Newburgh allowing two residential units on this one lot?

Mr. Hughes: Nothing that showed up in paperwork? 

Mr. Donovan: Well not in the paperwork that's before us that doesn't mean it's not someplace else.

Chairperson Cardone: Jerry, would you be able to get that information for us?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, what's the Board's wishes a…would you like you do during the break would you like to hold the Hearing open and a…research…?

Chairperson Cardone: Well I think we need that to hold it open because there is that issue, especially as Dave pointed out, with the two residences, on one lot whether or not it would be a use variance. 

Mr. Canfield: If I could quiz Dave a little bit? We're going to look and see if a Permit was issued to create this residence? 

Mr. Donovan: Well let's…let's look for anything.

Mr. Canfield: Okay.

Mr. Donovan: I don't necessarily narrow it down let's look for anything that…that relates to either or both of these and let's see where that…where that leads us.

Mr. Canfield: Zoning any prior zoning a…variances as well?

Mr. Donovan: As well, anything we that may have Building Permits, variances, applications to the Planning Board, Building Department whatever we may have.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, did you had something?

Mr. Burke: Yes. Just a question, is the purpose of this meeting today to…to…it's not to approve her subdivision? The purpose of this meeting…?

Chairperson Cardone: No it's not.

Mr. Burke: …is whether the shed whether she gets approval and then you wave the fact that she needs to move it 10 feet from the property line or not? I don't understand why you can't…a…give us an answer to that.

Chairperson Cardone: Well I'll let our attorney answer that but it's…

Mr. Burke: I mean that's the purpose of this meeting right?

Mr. Donovan: Sure that's what the meeting was noticed for now as the application has developed tonight we discover that in fact there may be another variance so we could say we’ll approve or not approve the one application but…

Mr. Burke: Right.

Mr. Donovan: …by the way when you go back to the Planning Board you may have to come back here and do this all over again.

Mr. Burke: Her or me?

Mr. Donovan: Well you’re welcome to come and do it all over again…

Mr. Burke: I'm on the record right?

Mr. Donovan: But she would have to do it all over again so the…so the thought is well if we discovered this issue let's address it now and see to what extent we can resolve it or not resolve it now.

Mr. Burke: Okay because I thought we were here just about the shed and it would seem that it is pretty straightforward to render a decision on that on there.

Mr. Hughes: Several things have shown up here…

Mr. Burke: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Let me say this too if I may, Counsel? If in the options that the applicant chooses to follow and another line has to be drawn with that other residence going with it I don't want to paint the applicant or the neighborhood in a corner where it's a lemon project because they don't know this until they get back before the Planning Board again and then all the seams break on this thing. If they were to do that whereby deed description it says that that carriage house with the apartment it is to be assigned to that lot and there's no way to physically do it without creating a substandard lot we got another problem on our hands. So I want everybody to be aware of that as well so you don't get going here and go after something you can’t achieve because it could happen. Obviously they missed a couple of things before it got here that should've been picked up and at this point I guess we need someone to move told the Public Hearing open.

Ms. Drake: I… I have a question first. Jerry, if she was to get an approval for the barn, the shed if that was to happen and then she wanted to tear it down and rebuild it she would need a new Building Permit and therefore need to get into variance for that, correct?

Mr. Hughes: Not if it's 10 feet from the property.

Mr. Canfield: Not necessarily.

Ms. Drake: Right but I'm just saying…

Mr. Manley: If she rebuilds within a year.

Ms. Drake: …just because she gets this variance now but that doesn't allow her to rebuild in the same location without another variance?

Mr. Donovan: Brenda I think that she has the right to a…within a certain time period to rebuild in the same location.

Mr. Manley: Isn't it 12 months from the date that you remove it?

Mr. Canfield: Well its 12 months for a use, you know, there's damage or what have you but…? Or what have you? To answer your question as first to rebuild it would definitely need a Building Permit. This doesn't negate the need at this time to address whether going to grant a variance for this basically zero lot line and the requirement should be 5 feet, it's only 5 feet, I think I heard you say 10 feet it's only required to be 5 feet though but that's the issue at hand. Okay? So this Board needs to address it or table it what you going to do with it but they definitely do need a Permit to rebuild it. Okay? If they are granted a variance and they get a Permit they rebuild it and all…all is good.

Ms. Drake: So they could rebuild it in the same location without…?

Mr. Canfield: Right, providing you grant the variance at this time.

Ms. Drake: Okay. I just thought that they…

Mr. Canfield: But if you don't read the variance I can't give them a Building Permit and then obviously it has to come down. So but that's the Board's decision, how they choose to go.

Ms. Hawkins: (Inaudible)

Mr. Canfield: You can't do anything until you get this variance issue.

Ms. Hawkins: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. You have to speak into the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: You have to use the microphone.

Mr. Canfield: Sorry.

Ms. Hawkins: What had asked was that even if a variance wasn't granted the barn could be taken down and built to correct Code without having any variances. But that's what I understand he's saying about the year.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, do I have a motion to hold the Public Hearing open until March? 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make the motion.

Ms. Drake: I'll second it. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Now you will not be we noticed anyone here was a neighbor you will not be re-noticed but we will meet again on March 22 which is the fourth Thursday in March.
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JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



MICHAEL MAHER



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE

 (Time Noted – 7:33 PM)
ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:33 PM) 



GDP AMODEO PARTNERS, LLC 
       UNION AVE (RTE 300) & ORR AVE, NBGH






       (96-1-6, 7, 8, 9, 11.1, 95-1-37.2, 36) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for varying fronts and side yards setbacks, the lot surface coverage and the total signage to build a commercial (retail) and restaurant (existing) space.   

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, our next applicant GDP Amodeo.                 

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twenty-one registered letters, eighteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Wolinsky: Good evening Madam Chairperson, Members of the Board, Larry Wolinsky here for Shoppes at Union Square. The purpose of our being before you this evening is to a…seek re-approval and reinstatement of variances that were received on November 24, 2009 with regard to this project. Those variances a…were extended on a…May 21, 2010 which was our one extension that we were entitled to and then lapsed effective on a…11-24-2010. A…as you recall the variances a…here were necessitated, virtually all necessitated by the fact of a…there being a…the need a…to…a…for individual sites within the shopping center to be …a…owned separately which is a situation we often encounter in shopping center developments and thereby it often necessitates the a…need for variances. So we're seeking to do an integrated shopping center a…and a…with some of the areas particularly the Cosimo’s parcel owned a…separately a…which is created the need for variances. Now just to refresh…refresh your recollection I'll take you through the a variances that were previously granted and we are looking to be a…have reinstated. The first one is a a… is on, I call it, Route 300 a… 60 feet a…is required, 55.7 feet is provided, that is a…an existing situation, it's been along there, in fact, the…the decisions that were previously issued a…essentially just confirmed this as a…a previous variance granted and a that relates to the Cosimo’s parcel. Similarly a second variance related to that parcel, what are referred to as the Orr Avenue variance is a… a...60…a…feet down to 36.5 foot variance recall we treated the, because this is essentially a corner we treated both sides as a front yard a and therefore it was a 60 foot setback. The third variance shown on that particular a…plan is what we referred to as the Vitamin Shoppe variance a…that is essentially a…a zero lot line variance but again it's…it's incorporated within the entire a…shopping center and it doesn't feel, function or appear in…in reality to be a zero lot line variance but for the financing aspects of it. The fourth a…variance I refer to as the supermarket out of Lowe's boundary variance that, I'll wait for Adrian to…

(Mr. Goddard approached the easel)

Ms. Gennarelli: You could just sit it on that little shelf that's on there. 

Mr. Goddard: Oh, that's a good idea. That’s good. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Okay. There you go. 

Mr. Goddard: Great, thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: Okay.

Mr. Wolinsky: The fourth variance a…is the one designated as the 5 foot variance there again that is the a…supermarket building against the a…Lowe's site again the project is integrated, all the shopping centers are integrated at this location again this is a…a variance created by the necessity for essentially a…ownership. And then the a…fifth variance a…is the adjoining a…variance from the supermarket building to the adjoining lot on a…Orr Avenue, its of 40.3 foot provided with I believe, 50 feet required and a…but there's a much greater distance actually between it if you recall at the time between the house and the wooded lot it sits on a…than the actual a…a…supermarket boundary there. The sixth variance was a, if you could put the Vitamin Shoppe backup there Adrian, the a…lot surface a…coverage for the Cosimo’s parcel. Code requires a 80% on that parcel, it will my go up to 89.8% a…again the overall shopping center site is far below the 80% coverage requirement but because this is a…retaining an ownership we technically need a variance for that and then finally there was a sign variance from 904 sq. ft. which was allowed to a 1333.5 sq. ft. which is required. Now we're not…we’re not asking for any changes from what was previously a…granted, none whatsoever. These are the exact same variances that you folks previously a…granted. There are no changes to the site conditions. There have been no changes to the site plan and there have been no changes in the surrounding neighborhood. The Planning Board has authorized the phasing of the site plan so where it…when we were originally before you the project would have been built in a single phase it now can be built in three phases however the phasing of the project does not impact or effect whatsoever the need a…for any of the variance. Similarly there have been some consolidation of internal lots on this property that had been approved by the Planning Board since we've been a…before you and again those lots are all internal and they’re not a…a…affected at all…a…the variances would not be affected by the lot consolidation. The Board, I've re-reviewed the Board’s a written decision on this matter and quite frankly could just issue, the Board if it wanted to, noting the lapse and the reapplication it would be appropriate to just simply reissue this decision a…with a new date. Everything that is recited in this a…decision including the rationale for your grant of the previous variances a…a…it remains the same and a…is in place so unless there are any questions a…that so we have to…to say. 

Mr. Manley: Mr. Wolinsky, I just have one and that relates to the…the property that was up in the…the back a…the lady that lives at that property was the only person that was really affected by the variances…

Mr. Wolinsky: Right.

Mr. Manley: …a…she was the only one that came to the Public Hearing I don't know she's here tonight however, she did express some concerns with the proximity of the rear of the ShopRite and there were some I think things that a…Mr. Goddard indicated that he was going to do to help minimize the impact on her property. I was wondering if that was still something that a…was going to be done and if… and if there have been meetings with her since then and what has been the a…the outcome of that?

Mr. Goddard: It's been a couple years since…since we were in front of you before and immediately after that… 

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you hold that up a little, I'm sorry could you hold that up a little?

Mr. Goddard: Sure. During that process we a…we actually did get involved in cleaning a…the stream to try to improve the drainage little bit. The rest of the stuff we were going to do we…we will still do but obviously construction hasn't started yet so, you know the…the…the a…we have every intention of collaborating with her as we did before.

Mr. Manley: What is the estimated time of application for Clearing and Grading and Building Permits before when that process starts?

Mr. Goddard: We're doing it in three phases, the first phase involves essentially extending the Cosimo's building and creating the entrance on a…on Route 300 so clearing and grading of the rest of the site won't happen until we get to that phase. I…I don't know when that's going to be exactly. But a…it's the…the economy and the circumstances have forced us to do this in three pieces instead of one.

Mr. McKelvey: ShopRite is not still going to be there, are they?

Mr. Wolinsky: Well that's we…we just don't…

Mr. Goddard: We don't know what they're doing.

Mr. Wolinsky: Yeah we don't know really the answer to that. It's yes, it's on, it's off, it's on, it's off, you know so.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, there's rumors about the Marketplace to…

Mr. Wolinsky: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: Anything about parking?

Mr. Wolinsky: Anything different about parking? No.

Mr. Hughes: So the same requests and descriptions that went on before with reciprocities?

Mr. Wolinsky: Correct, everything is absolutely the same…

Mr. Hughes: Exactly the same?

Mr. Wolinsky: …exactly the same. 

Mr. Hughes: Okay, I don't know if you've identified yourself Mr. Goddard for the record?

Mr. Goddard: I'm Adrian Goddard (inaudible).

Mr. Hughes: But back to what my colleague questioned you about, about Ms. Hall's property?

Mr. Goddard: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: You haven't done anything? 

Mr. Goddard: We did actually clean up the stream and take some preliminary steps to…to…to improve that situation.

Mr. Hughes: I remember when that conversation took place and I believe your wife was here with you at that time…

Mr. Goddard: Okay.

Mr. Hughes: …and Ms. Hall was very upset about getting that finished. You promised us he would take care of that right away.

Mr. Goddard: Which we did to the extent that we could at that time.

Mr. Hughes: In you’re a…foresight and divine wisdom could you finish up the rest of what's around to what you're doing the first part of this?

Mr. Goddard: A…I'm not sure what else is necessary... 

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Mr. Goddard: …at the first part but…

Mr. Hughes: Okay.

Mr. Goddard: …absolutely whatever is required prior to us actually doing the main construction back there (inaudible) to that. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we close the Hearing. 

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Grace, Grace…the Orange County report…

Chairperson Cardone: We have not received the report from the Orange County Department of Planning so we will not be able to make a decision on this this evening.

Mr. Wolinsky: When was that transmitted?

Chairperson Cardone: The 7th of February, I believe.

Mr. Wolinsky: Okay.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes I tried to get it back, they were not ready. I was on the phone with them until five o'clock. They said it just wasn't ready.

Mr. Wolinsky: Okay. Okay.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay? 

Mr. Wolinsky: Okay, thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: Do you want the vote now to close it or…what you wanted to?

Chairperson Cardone: Well we could always reopen if we hear anything… 

Mr. Donovan: Well you couldn't reopen to, no. 

Chairperson Cardone: No. 

Mr. Donovan: You know I leave it up to the Board's discretion you generally hold the Public Hearing if you have some input from the public that's going to assist you in your decision-making.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I'd really like to see what the County has to say about that there were some really critical issues.

Mr. Donovan: Well you have to but at least that's…

Chairperson Cardone: We have to…we have to hear what the County has to say…

Mr. Wolinsky: The last time the County did not respond.

Mr. Donovan: They did not respond, they actually did respond but not in a timely fashion. 

Mr. Wolinsky: Oh not in a timely fashion, oh okay.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll rescind my motion to close. I'll make a motion we hold it open then.

Ms. Drake: Second. 

Mr. Donovan: That would be to the March meeting?

Mr. McKelvey: Till the March meeting March meeting.

Ms. Gennarelli: March 22. Okay, roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.
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ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:47 PM) 



CHRISTIAN KELLY



39 NEW ROAD, NBGH 







(34-2-16.3) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking a Use variance to build a single-family residence in a B-Zone.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Christian Kelly.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out sixteen registered letters, ten were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Brown: I'm Charles Brown the engineer for the applicant. The applicant Chris Kelly is here with us tonight, a…he is the owner of the subject parcels. He’s been a resident actually on the property a…and in Newburgh area for substantial period of time. He's got a small business, he a reconstructs a historic windows. He subdivided his property we did that work for, we filed the map in 2010 a…creating three lots, it's in the B zone. A…the a…front lot contains an existing residence, a existing residence is permitted in the B zone but to construct a new residence in the B zone requires a use variance. A…strict adherence to the zoning would require a commercial development of Lot 3 that's the subject of this application. The client's intention is to put a residence for himself on that lot. Due to the downturn in the economy a…that lot is not viable for a…commercial development. The only use that would actually fit based on the zoning are a small retail or an office building a…a lot of the a…B zone uses would be prohibited based on lot size and due to the access to the neighborhood it wouldn’t be viable use for a…a…renting out as a commercial building. There is also substantial amount of vacant a…commercial space in the Town at this time too so development of that lot as a commercial lot again is not financially viable. And this lot is actually right in the middle of the R-2 zone a…we have R-2 zone across the street and R-2 that backs up to the back lot. A…when we were looking at doing the subdivision we actually approached the Town Supervisor and Town engineer, Jim Osborne about getting that a…lot rezoned to R-2, they didn't have a problem with it however they said it would take approximately 3 years a…and…and a substantial amount of fees involved mostly in the application…applicant’s side. This proposed use would not change the character of the neighborhood because a…because a…most of the a…neighborhood is residential including some of the a…existing buildings both on this lot at adjoining lots a…which are residential. But I know it's not a condition of use variance but it should be but this a…proposed use would actually have less of an environmental impact on the a…on the…the neighborhood than the a…permitted use. I'm going to turn this over to a…my associate here, Jim Raab who is going to talk more about the nature of the neighborhood and the a…the zoning.

Mr. Raab: Basically what I tried to do here is demonstrate exactly how this portion of this B zone is. As Charlie said, it's R-2 to the other side of New Road, its R-2 right behind the parcel, our parcel is in yellow on this...on this map here. The pink is all the IB on the north side of Route 32. One of the things we were pointing out is the…the unmarketability of this parcel as a commercial parcel. There are ten parcels on Crabapple Court that have been available for probably close to eighteen years that are…are there for the…they are in the same zone have all the same uses and they been vacant. That…that roads has been built now for, I believe, for sixteen years and there is only one parcel built on it. A…it's since been bought up by one owner but the fact of the matter still remains that these these lots are available and they’re right off of Route 32. A…and as we did…as was stated in the application we systematically eliminated every use from 1 to 16 in the B zone for this lot. 

Mr. Brown: All right, so we here to answer any questions from the public and/or the Zoning Board. 

Mr. Hughes: Could we see that color-coded chart again behind that plate that's up there now?

Mr. Brown: This here? This is the three lots we created with the subdivision filed in 2010.

Mr. Hughes: So the blue lot and the pink lot are the ones that the overhead wires cross over the top of?

Mr. Brown: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: That's 100 foot easement?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And it looks as though from here to scale that the first lot encapsulated in blue doesn't have any buildings underneath those power line's but on the other lot is that hundred foot easement overlaps to the top corner of that lot but not where there is any building?

Mr. Brown: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: Okay, so… 

Mr. Brown: This is a… this is a freestanding garage that is underneath the easement but not underneath the lines it selves. 

Mr. Hughes: So that things been there a long time?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: So are you counting the footage for your lot underneath that easement or is that been a…discounted from your formula?

Mr. Brown: As far as the lot area?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Brown: A…that's included; we've included that in the lot area.

Mr. Hughes: You have water that goes up that road that serves all those lots are you going to put water up those roads?

Mr. Brown: The proposal for the residential use on the lot three that we have for tonight that would be a…a the water service would be a well on that lot.

Mr. Hughes: And the other two served with Town water?

Mr. Brown: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: There is no sewer that area?

Mr. Brown: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And you meet the setbacks… 

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: …from the distances all right?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: …without being in the utility easement?

Mr. Brown: Right, yes, yes, a…the intention down the road is for the applicant to build a shop for his business on Lot 2 that was the intention of the subdivision initially.

Mr. Hughes: So you're going to have residence, business and residence?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel what's the modern ruling about the discount of the over head wires and the Central Hudson easement? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, if you don't mind let's skip to what I think is a huge problem here. You a…subdivided the property, right?

Mr. Brown: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: So you created the new lot in the B zone?

Mr. Brown: Right.

Mr. Donovan: So you, the way I analyze it it's a self-created hardship. The self-created hardship in the use variance context is an absolute bar to relief. I…I don't see where this Board can give you a use variance.

Mr. Brown: Well, I mean I look at the self-created a…probably a little more strictly than you do, and that's you know the way I look at it it's when somebody does something before they come to the Board. A…you know, we're here to ask permission to get a use variance but this has not been built in other words it's a B zone lot.

Mr. Donovan: Right I understand Charlie but…

Mr. Brown: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: The way the law looks at it is you knew of the knowledge of the zoning in the B district, you are at least or the applicant was at least imputed to know at the time they pursued the subdivision.

Mr. Brown: That it was a B zone, yes.

Mr. Donovan: That was a B Zone and that residential homes, new residential homes were not permitted in the B zone.

Mr. Brown: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: So that makes the hardship from a legal point of view and purely from a legal point of view but important for this application to be self-created. Self-created in the context of an area variance is just one of the five factors to be considered. In the context of an area variance it knocks you out-of-the-box.

Mr. Hughes: In a use.

Mr. Donovan: I'm sorry in a use variance. I'm no longer hundred percent correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: In the context of the use variance it knocks you out-of-the-box. I don't know how you… I don't know how you get over that hurdle, you know, and I understand with the Supervisor may have said to you but that's…the law says you know in certain circumstances we allow for the relief valve of a use variance. In other circumstances it's a zone change.

Mr. Brown: Okay so…so our next step then, I mean assuming that the Board agrees with you and you are the legal Counsel so I'm assuming they will a…it… I will be denied. So the next…our next step we go to the Town Board for a rezoning which again they…they did say that something they would do because it's just a matter of moving the zoning line but again there's a timeline on that. A…so it's…that's the route we're going then I would ask that this Board if at all possible make a recommendation to the Supervisor to, you know, help facilitate this so that we can get, you know, get this house started.

Mr. Hughes: The property that’s West of the yellow property is R-2 zone?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: So your request would be to add that parcel to that districts zoning?

Mr. Brown: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: And then you're in the zone that you can do that.

Mr. Brown: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Does that…where your next parcel was going to be a commercial parcel would you want to stay in that B zone?
Mr. Brown: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: So that's your simple way out. Now you had said earlier…

Mr. Brown: Well it's simple but it's time-consuming. 

Mr. Donovan: And I'm not, you know, I'm not trying to give anybody a hard time but…

Mr. Brown: I understand.

Mr. Donovan: …it's not a simple…it is necessarily it is time consuming and it's costly.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: I don't disagree with any of it but...

Mr. Hughes: But if I told you you had a three bank shot or no shot at all you go for the three bank shot wouldn't you?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Okay, I just wanted to make sure we're headed for the same goal here. With a situation like this you said earlier in the conversation or maybe Mr. Raab did that you tried all sixteen?

Mr. Brown: That was in the rider that we submitted with that. We went through all sixteen of the a…a…commercial uses.

Mr. Hughes: What's allowed in that zone.

Mr. Brown: In the B zone.

Mr. Hughes: And there is no chance to rent anything or lease anything with those?

Mr. Brown: Right, right.

Mr. Hughes: So then it looks like your real option is to go for that zone change to add that to the Residential District.

Mr. Brown: Oh now again would this Board or could this Board actually, you know, help us facilitate this with the Town Board and the Supervisor?

Chairperson Cardone: No I don't think that's possible. We are an independent Board.

Mr. Brown: I understand that but I mean did you correspond…? Oh…

Mr. Hughes: Well we try to.

Mr. Raab: I have one question for Dave. Would it make any difference if the two lots were consolidated? 

Mr. Donovan: No. Because you had…you had a house, as I understand the application, at one point in time there was a house in the front, now you've now created new lots… 

Mr. Raab: New lots.

Mr. Donovan: Right so you created new lots that you want to put a new house on.

Mr. Raab: One…one we want to put a new house on.

Mr. Donovan: Right so that's hardship that you've created yourself.

Mr. Hughes: But if you do that then you knockout your chance to put a commercial installation on the middle lot.

Mr. Raab: That's true I… I'm…it's just a question I'm asking.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, no I don't want you…

Mr. Donovan: Yeah well you created one extra lot, two extra lots or three extra lots.

Mr. Raab: And even though they were up front I was not…I was not part of the application for the subdivision but I was… I helped file at the end even though we were up front about the fact that we, I mean we designed the septic based on a…on a one, you know on a one-family house and all of that with the Planning Board with that said we still self-created the hardship?

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Raab: Okay.

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Brown: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, please use the mic.

Mr. Donovan: I understand I'm not saying that you did something untoward or underhanded or anything like that but…but by creating the lot…

Mr. Brown: (Inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: …that you now want to put a house on when you can't put a house on, you created the hardship that you know confront.

Mr. Brown: Oh… I understand again we’re just trying to do the most expeditious, you know, take the most expeditious path for our client so…

Mr. Hughes: How long ago was that hacked up? Anybody know?

Mr. Brown: We filed it in 2010. So yeah two years ago we filed it.

Mr. Hughes: And then before that didn't that thing go through a change where it was a residence and went to business?

Mr. Raab: No what it was it was IB first. Okay? And then the IB line went up the a…the easement. Okay?

Mr. Brown: The B zone not IB. 

Mr. Raab: Oh yeah and we’re talking a way back…way back. Okay? See this got changed to a B in 96. Okay? Why they went past the Schwake building I will never know. Because the Malcolm parcels were all subdivided as residential parcels and they're all in the B zone but they're all residential parcels so…

Chairperson Cardone: Did anyone from the public to comment or question? Any other questions from the Board?

Ms. Gennarelli: Grace. 

Mr. Malcolm: I'm one of the owners from the Malcolm family.

Chairperson Cardone: OK please state your name right in to the microphone and then…

Mr. Malcolm: My name is Gary Malcolm I own one of the parcels of the Malcolm family there and to my knowledge it’s a business…B…it's not Residential.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay.

Mr. Malcolm: And my brother owns the one parcel and my sister owns the other parcel and to our knowledge it's all B yeah or IB.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, thank you.

Mr. Raab: Just to make the record clear what I was stating was is the subdivision that was done for the Malcolm's was a Residential subdivision when it was an IB zone but they’re all…this is…they’re all in the B zone, no there is no doubt about that. There's one vacant parcel and two residences.

Mr. Hughes: What is it Will-ware right on back to Schwake is all IB?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me Jim. 

Chairperson Cardone: Use the microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes that's correct, thank you.

Mr. Raab: Sorry, go ahead what was that?

Mr. Hughes: From the old Will-ware building all the way back to Schwake electric is that all the same zone?

Mr. Raab: Yeah it was all the same zone.

Mr. Hughes: And then the water goes right on up New Road up to Fostertown?

Mr. Raab: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.






(Time Noted – 8:01 PM)


------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision: 8:35 PM) 



CHRISTIAN KELLY



39 NEW ROAD, NBGH 







(34-2-16.3) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking a Use variance to build a single-family residence in a B-Zone.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Christian Kelly at 39 New Road, requesting a Use variance to build a single-family residence in a B-Zone. 

Mr. Manley: There were a number of issues with the…the application. One is with respect to the applicant I don't believe that the applicant really showed any competent financial comparisons that another occupancy would not work at that location. The other which was more, I think, to the applicant's disfavor was the fact that, as brought up by Counsel, it was really a self-created hardship and that item right there would bar the applicant from any relief from the Board. So I'll really don't think that there's any way that that could be granted.

Chairperson Cardone: do we have a motion for approval?
No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval?

Mr. Maher: I'll make a motion for disapproval.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes

Mr. Hughes: Discussion? Before we get going here?

Chairperson Cardone: Sure. Go ahead.

Mr. Hughes: We did discuss with the applicant and the recommendation that it be adjoined to the district that would be suitable in and I don't know if a disapproval is in order at this point without this discussion taking place but I wanted to get that on the record that we did recommend to the applicant another way that they might have a shot at this.

Chairperson Cardone: Right I think that the minutes will reflect that.

Mr. Hughes: Okay.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012           (Time Noted – 8:01 PM) 



OMAR CHIHUAHUA


11 EAST STONE STREET, NBGH







(84-4-6) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the rear yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity of one side yard setback and both side yards combined setback to keep a prior built rear deck on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Omar Chihuahua.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out forty registered letters, thirty-two were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, I would just like to comment before we start we also did not get the County report on this application so we will discuss it this evening but this is another application that we will have to hold open until next month. 

Mr. Chihuahua: Okay.

Chairperson Cardone: State your name for the record and your request.

Mr. Chihuahua: Omar Chihuahua this is about my deck, from…I don't know this is my first time… I'm learning today. I am going to try to explain I already my deck, I am already doing. It's 9 feet to 17 connecting this one I'm making before I am building the footings I asking my building permit, my inspector, he told me doing the footings and how to do the footings after that…a couple of days after he’s told me its too big and blah, blah, blah but the deck is done. I’m living in the house and now I want to know what is my best way to do. I want to keep my deck because it’s already there and I don’t know how to my do. It’s my first time, my first day and… 

Chairperson Cardone: Okay. 

Mr. Hughes: Jerry do you have a Stop Work Order on this thing or anything or…?

Chairperson Cardone: It’s already built.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, I think the…like the applicant has explained a…it had a Permit but the rear deck became part of it as well. It did become part of the Permit that was granted but during the inspections it was observed the work  going on and I think that’s what brought him before this Board.

Mr. Maher: So the Permit that was issued was for some other work in the residence?

Mr. Canfield: I’m sorry?

Mr. Maher: The Permit for the work that was issued for some other work in the residence I’m assuming then?

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Was it for the front? 

Mr. Canfield: I’m sorry?

Chairperson Cardone: The Permit…was it for the front part?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, yes.

Ms. Drake: Was there a previous deck there that was in poor condition and you took that off and replaced that with a new deck?

Mr. Chihuahua: Yeah, well the first deck is a…really too small a…the inspector told me  this was no good to, it’s not legal because I really small its like three feet, the steps coming down, she’s not legal, you have to do it like that and when he’s doing, redoing the deck well I asked him…I gave him my drawing and they’d say, okay, doing the footings and when he told me doing the footings and he inspect the footings and I building my deck and after a couple of days he’s told me its too big, you got to many room, too many spikes. But the first, my first deck is not a deck really its just only steps going down this is not legal this is what he’s told me. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?    

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: Step up to the microphone and state your name for the record.  

Mr. Marcantonio: I’m Sal Marcantonio, I live at 8 Plank Road, and I’m not here for…because I received this paper here and a…

Chairperson Cardone: Okay.

Mr. Marcantonio: So I don’t know what does this entail now as far as a…either he has to have this deck removed or he has to have it shortened or removed or I don’t know what that is going to entail now. Whether they said its going to have to extend onto my property because of the extent of his deck now that exists right now? We’re not taking it down I guess, right or…?

Chairperson Cardone: But you’re not in back of him, you’re in front of him? 

Mr. Marcantonio: Well, this address it’s in the back of his house where the deck is.

Chairperson Cardone: The deck is in the back of the house…

Mr. Marcantonio: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: …but you said you were at 8? 

Mr. Marcantonio: 8 Plank Road, yeah I’m in front I’ve got the property on the opposite side.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, you’re on North Plank Road?

Mr. Marcantonio: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, I thought you meant that you were on the same street. 

Mr. Marcantonio: That’s right on my property line there so… (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: So Mr. Marcantonio you have an objection to the extension of the deck?   

Mr. Marcantonio: Well, that’s…that’s…I don’t have any objection but what does it entail as far as my property is concerned, you know, my property line? 

Chairperson Cardone: Well instead of being 40-feet away he is 34-feet away.

Mr. Marcantonio: Okay, so...

Mr. Maher: The Notice that you received was just to notify you that you could come here and listen to what’s going on and if you had any objections you could at that time, voice them.

Mr. Marcantonio: Well I’m here.

Mr. McKelvey: He’s asking for a 6-foot…

Mr. Marcantonio: 6-foot setback into my property? 

Chairperson Cardone: No its not, none of it’s in to your property.  

Mr. McKelvey: No its not.

Mr. Marcantonio: Oh no.

Chairperson Cardone: Instead of being 40-feet away from your property line he would be 34-feet away from your property line.

Mr. Marcantonio: Well I…well I don’t have any problem with that then.

Mr. Canfield: If you’d like to come over here I can show you.

Mr. Marcantonio: Sure, yeah.

Mr. Chihuahua: Well when this happened I go to this gentlemen house and see if he had…is possible to sell me a little property because I need 40-feet and I not looking for him maybe he would sell me little a…no, I don’t know (Inaudible). 

Chairperson Cardone: Okay. Okay, do you understand?

Mr. Marcantonio: Yes, also I was wondering if there is supposed to be a fence line, there’s no…nothing there right now exists there whereas the other property had they had a stockade, you know, fences there and there’s just wide right now, where it is now his liner.

Chairperson Cardone: Well he doesn’t have to have a fence. No.

Mr. Hughes: Do you want to put up a fence? 

Mr. Marcantonio: If I want to? Well there’s…what do you think? You know, as far as, you know, privacy or do you want some privacy?

Mr. Chihuahua: Yeah, yeah I put up a fence but I need a little time, I mean, I try because I fix the whole house and I fix everything.

Mr. Marcantonio: Yes, (Inaudible)

Mr. Chihuahua: Yeah, but definitely I want to put a fence, put nice parking, it’s my house, it’s where I live, you know, myself and my kids living there.  

Mr. Marcantonio: I got no problem with that, you know.

Mr. Chihuahua: Thank you.

Mr. Marcantonio: You know what I mean, all right?

Mr. Chihuahua: All right.

Mr. Marcantonio: All right.

(Mr. Chihuahua and Mr. Marcantonio shaking hands)

Mr. Hughes: We should take a picture of that. 

Mr. Donovan: We never saw that before.

Chairperson Cardone: Good neighbors. Okay any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I’ll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: That was a motion to close the Hearing. They haven’t voted on the variance yet.

Mr. Manley: And we can’t until next month.

Mr. Donovan: So we have to…there was a referral to the Orange County Department of Planning. They have to write back to us and until they do we can’t…we can’t give the variance. So you…unfortunately you have to wait a month. There’s no reason to keep the hearing open unless you’re going to have or entertain public comment over what the County says.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.    

Mr. Hughes: And everybody that had a chance was here. 

Mr. Donovan: And he can’t disagree with me because I’m right tonight.

Chairperson Cardone: I do disagree with you but…

Mr. McKelvey: I see no reason to hold it open. 

Chairperson Cardone: If we had to hold it open on the other one than it should be held open on this one.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s true too.

Mr. Manley: Well it is at the Board’s discretion.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Manley: And this was only one variance.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, that’s true. Okay.

Mr. Manley: The other one was what, six, seven?

Chairperson Cardone: Right. Okay. I’ll go along with that. I’ll agree.

Mr. Donovan: Well I’ll consistently be right because I’ll agree with whatever the Chair says because then I have to be right. 

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: So then you’re going to Reserve Decision.

Chairperson Cardone: We’re going to Reserve Decision, yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: Okay.

Chairperson Cardone: We’ll make our decision next month after we get the report from the County.

Ms. Gennarelli: There is a report that gets sent to Orange County and it didn’t come back so we have to hold it till next month.

Mr. Chihuahua: Okay, okay, all right, thank you. 

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



MICHAEL MAHER



JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: 



RUTH EATON

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 8:10 PM)


ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012           (Time Noted – 8:10 PM) 



BRIAN MC CUTCHEON /


179 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH

      B C & N CARPETS INC.


(60-3-14.2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to erect additional signage on the building.   

Chairperson Cardone: Okay held over from our January meeting Brian McCutcheon/BC & N Carpets. And we needed two things, we wanted to have a chance to look at the Planning Board minutes which we have done and we also wanted to get something from you which we received tonight. Has everyone had a chance to look at the…the drawing and the letter? And do we have any comments on it?

Mr. Hughes: Well, if my memory serves me right, we went back and forth about whether there was going to be a sign on the roof or not and then the possibility of adding or altering the upright sign out front and I thought that the applicant had agreed that he would reduce the size of his request but…  

Mr. Goetze: I did.

Mr. Hughes: …the cut that I received here is a 30 inch high sign by 216 inches long?

Mr. Goetze: Which is half the size of what the original one was, it was 89 sq. ft. and this is 43 sq. ft. (inaudible) so we cut it in half actually and a…based on the sign expertise person I’m dealing with he thought that that’s kind of on the lower end of a size based on the size of the building or the frontage that I have so a…we felt that that was trying to meet halfway somewhere, where we can get as small as we can without being too big and giving the…our neighbors their opportunity to put a sign up if they need it at a future, future time. So whether you grant 89 sq. ft. and I’m using half and then they can use the other half. 

Mr. Donovan: Well let’s…

Mr. Goetze: Since my frontage of my space is actually half of the whole building. The other two share so I think I’m probably entitled to at least have it, I would hope so.

Mr. McKelvey: And your sign is just over your section?

Mr. Goetze: Just over my section in the center of it. 

Mr. Hughes: As depicted in the rendering?

Mr. Goetze: Exactly, yeah, yeah and its actually to scale so its going to look that size on there so, you know, its hard to tell by picture but a…

Ms. Drake: So the variance you’re asking for is that the 89 or the 34? 

Mr. Goetze: Actually to be honest with you, if you give me the 45 I’m…I’m going to take it and go. So, and they can deal with it in the future.

Mr. Hughes: Were there any other points that we made on this issue? 

Mr. Donovan: Well I…I want to circle back here a little bit because if I…if I understand, correct me if I’m wrong I may not get out of here with being wrong tonight, are there any signs there now?

Mr. Goetze: On the building?

Chairperson Cardone: Not on the building.

Mr. Goetze: No, on the street there is a post sign, yes.    

Mr. Donovan: So, Jerry if he’s only asking for…well let me look at what Code Compliance has done, there's allowed a maximum of 98.74. That 98.74 is the sign out front? 

Mr. Goetze: It's all used up, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: Because of the road frontage.

Mr. Donovan: And you are…you are proposing what square feet now?

Mr. Goetze: 43 sq. ft. That's 30 inches x 216 inches.

Mr. McKelvey: This is just on the building?

Mr. Goetze: Just on the building, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: On the mansard roof.

Mr. Goetze: On the…yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: Doesn't have to include it?

Chairperson Cardone: And all those other signs would come down?

Mr. Goetze: Which signs are we referring to…those banners?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Goetze: Yes those are going to come down, those are temporary. 

Mr. Hughes: Anything in the window or everything in the window?

Mr. Goetze: What do you mean? Like a sign?

Mr. Hughes: Well in your windows I see you got a couple of banners and stuff.

Mr. Goetze: There's nothing in there, you mean the banners hanging from the thing those are coming down, their outside actually there hanging from the structure on ropes.

Mr. Hughes: I saw that….

Mr. Goetze: …they’re coming down.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve all been out to the site.

Mr. Goetze: Oh, great, yeah so…both of those banners will come down the as soon as the sign goes up. That's definitely; they are there because we have no sign.

Mr. Hughes: What's chewing your process up is that the freestanding sign is counted both sides which gobbles up a lot of square footage. So to answer your question more specifically Dave, they've got near the max on what they've got on that freestanding sign.

Mr. Donovan: What's going to happen when the other stores come though?

Mr. Hughes: All the stores in that plaza are occupied.

Mr. Donovan: But is there any…any, I guess my question is, is there any other store that is either vacant or is going to require a sign?

Mr. Goetze: Well yeah, I mean the carpet store may… Brian who is actually the owner of the building may do a sign at some point, not sure if he is and the granite store verbally said they wouldn't do a sign that they're not interested in that but…but I mean they have no plans in doing something, they're not really even interested and but I have to based on that other three-page letter that I gave you that they are requiring me to get a sign up there.

Mr. Donovan: It's just that you know there could be those tenants or other tenants in the future that could come before the Board.

Mr. McKelvey: They would have to come before us though.

Mr. Donovan: Just…just to be aware that we are not…that this is not necessarily a cap because this is only applying to this space.

Mr. Hughes: Right at present I think the whole complex is leased out…

Mr. Goetze: Oh yeah, yeah it’s just those.

Mr. Hughes: And so that what's on the sign, on the freestanding sign has gobbled up near the full volume and he's looking for his sign to be a little bit over and above…what's the total number. Is that right Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah the calcs out to like 44.37.

Mr. Hughes: Over and above what they’re allowed to have?

Mr. Canfield: Right, the existing sign…

Mr. Hughes: So it's the whole sign is basically…

Mr. Canfield: Right takes up a… I think the lot was only like 180 feet so we only had like 90 square footage total permissible.

Mr. Hughes: I don't even know if it was that long.

Mr. Canfield: Right if I remember correctly.

Mr. Donovan: Let me just I don't…there's nothing we can do with it, this fellow was here tonight no one else is here. The better way to do it is what we have done in the past. Now this is obviously not a large mall but just when they've come in and they've shown all of their signage for the entire mall that we've I think on more than one occasion given a max and we've allowed that to be sort of allocated within the mall itself. Now we don't have that opportunity tonight because the mall, the strip mall owner is not here so...

Mr. Maher: He was…he's been advised for two months now this was coming…

Mr. Goetze: Yeah he doesn't seem to be interested.

Mr. Maher: If in fact he wanted that is his responsibility to show up and ask for it.

Mr. Donovan: I just, you know, at some point in time you can almost bet that somebody else from that strip mall is going to come here and ask for a sign variance.

Mr. Goetze: Well it would probably be him but he did verbally say to me that if we were to get 89 sq. ft. or whatever square feet we got variance what we asked for, I would use the half which I'm trying to work with and then he would use the other half. If you opened it to that and said this is the maximum you can use he would then be forced to use whatever's left over and then you wouldn't have to see anyone else at some point. It would be there open for that. You could do it that way.

Mr. Hughes: But you're making a piggyback here you looking for 45 more for yourself?

Mr. Goetze: Actually no the application was for 89 really but for about 90. What I'm doing is I'm cutting my in half and if you wanted to give the whole plaza 89 additional or 90 then he would only be able to do 45 or whatever it is.

Mr. Hughes: Five pounds of lead or 5 pounds of feathers if you're looking for 89 and you’re cutting then half and he's looking for that other half you’re 89 over again. With the sign that's there now is just about filled to its max.

Mr. Goetze: Yeah so…

Mr. Hughes: Realistically if you are…

Mr. Goetze: Oh, yeah I understand that that's what I said if you approved 89… 

Mr. Hughes: (inaudible) …so you can understand...

Mr. Goetze: …over it yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …what I'm trying to tell you. 

Mr. Goetze: No yeah I know you saying.

Mr. Hughes: Okay.

Mr. Canfield: But keep in mind too this Board can only act on what's before it.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: And right now it's only…

Mr. Donovan: The only point I'm trying to make now is someone else from this strip mall will come before us at some point in time.

Mr. Hughes: Point well taken and I agree with you.

Mr. Manley: Well if it's…if it's a different Board at that time too, a different Board could turn around if we are not here and it's three years later, a different Board could say hey listen you've…you've reached what we’re willing to give you. What you got is what you got, denied. So, I mean you…you roll the dice when you come another time looking, going to the well again for the same thing. You know at some point a Board no matter what it is Board going to say hey listen we gave you as much as we could give you, what you got is what you got and figure it out.

Mr. Goetze: I'm sure he understands the risks of not being here and being fully included in it and I said, I'm going to ask for what I can ask for and they're going to give me what they are going to want to give me so…if I get what I need for my business then I guess he's going to have to then come back and have a claim or a… basically a case to get additional on top of that…if that's the way you want to handle it.

Mr. McKelvey: He’s well aware that you are here.

Mr. Goetze: He knows I'm here twice I speak to him all the time; I see them everyday so…

Ms. Drake: He also owns the main sign that's on the road…

Mr. Goetze: Yes he owns the, yes.

Ms. Drake: …and isn't a bigger part of that, the top part of that is his sign and this…

Mr. Goetze: Yeah, his…no it's…well it's a third, third and third actually.

Ms. Drake: Is it? Okay, I thought one was bigger.

Mr. Goetze: Yeah, which, on mine, yeah, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: But now let's set all of that aside generically, the Planning Board should be taking care of all of these things. That mall is not that old so they should of had a conscription in the beginning to say okay they only have 160 feet of road frontage and therefore you can only get this many square feet. If you’re going to have two or three tenants or whatever you only going to have that and that should've been set somewhere before they approved that mall. It's not this man's fault here.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Maher: But with the same token though when that building was proposed it was a single occupancy based on the current market, the economy is obviously in a downturn so…

Mr. Hughes: You still about the same amount of square footage that you are allowed.

Mr. Maher: True.

Mr. Hughes: Whether there is one tenant or six tenants.

Mr. Maher: They utilized the max that was allowed at the current time when they applied for a Permit.

Chairperson Cardone: They didn't request any more from the Planning Board. They a… going by the minutes here they said we know that just one freestanding sign that meets the zoning requirements so that's all that they asked for. You know, I wouldn’t think that the Planning Board would give them more than they asked for.

Mr. Canfield: Correct and also a… Mike is 100% right, when BC&N building was constructed it was constructed as a one tenant, one building and that's what the freestanding sign addressed. A…but also I might add to for the Boards a…a…assisting the Board that BC&N has been there for five years…

Mr. Goetze: About six years.

Mr. Canfield: Six years, with the signage that they have. The granite place which became at that time the second occupancy hasn't had any additional signage nor have they requested for any so and now this tenant Benjamin Moore comes in so again I would think you rule on what's before you, they're looking for signage for the Benjamin Moore…

Mr. Donovan: Just reading through the minutes, which is always a dangerous thing but, from the Planning Board minutes of May 5, 2005 a member of the Planning Board asked is it going to be a sign on the building, Jim Raab represented them, no not at this time. There is no sign proposed at all. And Karen Arent, we did discuss this with the Planning Board attorney and the Planning Board during work session if there will be a sign this will have to come back for an amended architectural approval. Mr. Raab, correct we know that, just one freestanding sign that meets the zoning requirements. I have no idea if that's still a requirement but that's something you're going to need to…assuming you get the variance, I don't know whether he's going to need to go back for the Planning Board.

Chairperson Cardone: But they didn't make any restrictions.

Mr. Goetze: No they had no restrictions, no.

Mr. Donovan: No, they didn't, no they just said, you know architectural review.

Mr. Hughes: And they have two hats on they are the ARC so they can make that determination. I was speaking purely generically for these things that go on for the future so we don't end up with the same thing happening again we should write a letter recommending that they pick out the dimension and a square footage area so that it doesn't get…we could get flooded with stuff like this. That building is not that old, six years, seven years?

Mr. Manley: Jerry, if it's approved would trigger the Building Department to refer it back to the Planning Board for the architectural review portion of it?

Mr. Canfield: No, once the Planning Board has signed off on the site plan the ARB is done with it until there is such alterations that require it to go back for ARB approval again. Signage typically is not something that would send it back for ARB.

Mr. Manley: But even what Mike just said for a… Dave said in his a…reading of the minutes that they approve that and if there was any changes it would have to come back for ARB?

Mr. Canfield: Any change to the existing sign, I believe. A…but actually the zoning requirement is once a site plan is signed your signage requirements are what is the existing a…document to be enforced so if the square footage goes over then it comes before this Board. I wouldn't think that it's not an ARB item. Just like right now this application is here because of the overage of the square footage it's not an ARB item.

Mr. Manley: But aren't they not changing the site plan, deviating from what was originally approved by the Planning Board by placing a sign in an area that really was never approved by the Planning Board in the design?

Mr. Canfield: But there were no restrictions a…in some, some cases Jim I’ve seen like in the Mid-Valley Mall in the past a…the Planning Board has specifically put restrictions, any letters to be put on the façade are to be a specific size and color. Okay? That was a restriction that was imposed. And if you remember correctly that was our conversation at the last meeting about this to just research that and see. And I believe Grace had mentioned that you did research it and the Planning Board did not put any of those restrictions on there. A…if there were to be a second freestanding sign or this freestanding sign was to be relocated then perhaps that would change the architecture because these signs are architecturally designed to complement the building. They are more than just a couple of posts stuck in the ground. So that would constitute and I think that's what the minutes referred to if that sign was to be changed, relocated then that would constitute going back to the Planning Board but which is not the case in any of this. He's putting the sign on the building.

Mr. Donovan: But I think from our point of view if the Board is inclined to issue the variance you could just condition it upon architectural review approval if required.

Mr. Hughes: Do we have the paper back from the County on this one, we do don't we?

Chairperson Cardone: I read that last month. 

Mr. Donovan: Last month.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Donovan: Karen is pretty smart but just because Karen said it doesn't mean it's true but that what she said Jerry referred to the sign on the building not the sign out front. She…she specifically said if there will be, you know, Jim Raab, we know the just one freestanding sign that meets the zoning requirements.

Chairperson Cardone: But she also said it before he said there was going to be a sign. First he said there's no sign proposed and she said well if there is going to be a sign it would have to come back for approval. And then then he said well we are going to have a sign. So what she was saying was referring to the fact that he said it was not going to be any sign but as soon as she said that he said, we are going to have a sign.

Mr. Manley: Meaning a sign in the front, the freestanding sign?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Well, I'm sorry let's just take it back to the beginning. Chairman Ewasutyn, I'll turn to Board Members, Frank, Mr. Galli: Is there going to be a sign on the building? Mr. Raab: No not at this time. Mr. Galli: Okay. Mr. Raab: There is no sign proposed that this time it all. Then Karen Arent’s statement, If there will be a sign this will have to come back for an amended architectural approval. Mr. Raab: Correct we know that just one freestanding sign that meets the zoning requirements. I read it a little bit differently since Mr. Galli asked specifically if there was going to be a sign on the building. As to that question the answer is no. And I think Karen is saying well if you going to have one on the building, now she doesn't say that specifically, but that's the way I read it. If you could have one on the building you need to come back.

Mr. Goetze: Maybe she didn't say it.

Mr. Hughes: Well there's another thing that goes on too, generally when it gets to a ruling on ARC it's because it's in a particular area and it needs to be consistent with the rest of the neighborhood. They want to put a Las Vegas sign up and historical neighborhood or vice versa. So that ARC ruling is generally only exerted when it's necessary for the purpose of preventing something like that from happening.

Mr. Donovan: And that's why I'm suggesting that if we're going to grant the variance we make it subject to architectural review approval if required.

Mr. Hughes: I'll move that. 

Mr. Canfield: If I may, I think Dave you're partially right on this one…

Mr. Hughes: Oh.

Mr. Donovan: Come on.

Mr. Hughes: So you’re not going to make the whole night.

Mr. Donovan: Well I'm not going to make the whole night because you know I go home to my wife and kids and I’m never right there.

Mr. Canfield: So do I, so I'm enjoying this. A…keep in mind that the conversation from the minutes was from the Planning Board and the architectural review board and their consultants on the application that was before them. They were bantering with the applicant's representative to try and nail him down on signage for that building which was one tenant. They don't discuss future amendments to the building. A…that's the one part that I slightly disagree with you but the part that I do agree with you on and I think a way to perhaps clear this up would be to maybe send a letter to the Planning Board and state the application before you and asked them if this was something you would like to see again. It's…it’s real simple…a…and let them make the decision based on what they previously decided on if they want to see it again.

Mr. Hughes: So now there’s three tenants in there?

Mr. Canfield: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: The building is completely sprinkled, there's firewalls, everybody's got their own?

Mr. Canfield: Yes there is and also just to give you another dimension typically when this happens and in this economy it's a common thing that happens where these buildings are getting chopped up and leased out and…and what have you. And it's typically or historically been the Planning Board's approach that if it does not increase the footprint and the renovations, so to speak, are interior it's something that they have not historically wanted to have come back before them. Okay? If it's an issue whereas for some particular use was restricted initially such as a strip mall or say a strip building that has three occupancies but if you get over five, I believe it is, it's now determined to be a strip mall well the zoning requirements change so of course it's going to be something that's going to be a change of use, requires a site plan and then again may cross zoning thresholds and come back before you. But these smaller chop ups so to speak of these buildings like in this case where it was one tenancy and now it's broken into three at this point it still has not violated any zoning nor has it triggered anything to send it back to the Planning Board. Do you follow me? And that's just a little background to give you kind of a flavor of how these buildings evolved to what they did eventually end up with. So again my suggestion would be is perhaps put it back before the Planning Board and see if it's something that they would like to review again.

Mr. Manley: I would just say a note over to them, I mean quite often and you know how we get here with our Board when they kind of overstep their bounds on us, if this is something they have to look at and we approve it and then, you know, without any notice to them to be able to make their comments with their input I think that it…it's just in good communication between the two Boards.

Mr. Canfield: Agreed.

Mr. Donovan: I certainly think you can do that in the context of an approval though.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Maher: Yeah I think we could… we could approve the actual square footage, the design ultimately if they had some type of comment.

Mr. Donovan: Well, I agree hundred percent.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that you, see I think that you were right, right at the beginning Dave that if, if it's approved in the approval if you state that subject to, you know, architectural review if required.

Mr. Manley: If required.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: You know I think that covers it.

Mr. McKelvey: I think it would be less headache for him, for you.

Mr. Goetze: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: For everybody.

Mr. Goetze: I mean the proposed sign is going to be…

Mr. Donovan: Unless you want to come back next month because we would love to see you.

Mr. Goetze: No, no this is a…

Ms. Gennarelli: You will just hold them all over.

Mr. Donovan: This is the next meeting as it is.

Mr. Goetze: Only if I'm first on the list, I'll come back. But the proposed sign is a very similar sign as the one that's on the post so it's made of the same structure, material and its going to, you know, not the dimension but it's going to look the same. It's a plate with the box on it just like the one that's the road so it's architecturally I would think it would make sense.

Mr. Manley: We don't get involved in the architecture of things we just get involved whether or not it's up or down.

Mr. Goetze: The square footage.

Mr. McKelvey: And if you look at the building next door that's over signed.

Mr. Canfield: That's a problem.

Mr. Hughes: Almost everything is.

Ms. Drake: But it doesn't have any signs on the roof like this one?

Mr. Goetze: But it's above the store there's a…

Mr. Canfield: The window signage, the portable signage has all been in court several times.

Mr. Manley: So what you're saying is it's an enforcement nightmare over there?

Mr. Canfield: Signage is an enforcement nightmare. To be honest with you, signage enforcing signage regulations is like cutting the lawn. We could do a sweep of the Town and by the time you get to the northwestern and you can go back and start all over again.

Mr. Hughes: You have the same customers?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, yes.

Mr. Hughes: All the time.

Mr. Canfield: And a lot of them feel that's it's the cost of doing business. They go to pay the fine and put their sign backup.

Mr. McKelvey: But you see the things around like…like in where Target is all those signs are all the same color.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Which is, you wouldn't want all mixed colors.

Mr. Canfield: And I believe that was a Planning Board a… 

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. Canfield: … stipulation on their resolution that's why it is that way.

Mr. McKelvey: It's the same way with the one next door to him.

Mr. Goetze: They are all in red.

Mr. Canfield: Except the portable ones.

Mr. Hughes: What ballgame you have to go to?

Mr. Goetze: Oh I have to pick up my son at nine in Cornwall, that's all, nothing he's at a basketball practice.

Mr. Hughes: Can we let this man off the whipping post?

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the…

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to close the Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: We have to close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: We have held open one, two, three, four…

Ms. Gennarelli: The agenda is full next month.

Chairperson Cardone: The agenda next month is full. We only have two items that we are going to be voting on so if you want to proceed with the rest of the meeting? 

Mr. Manley: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Do we have to give a vote on this guy’s project?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes that's what I'm saying.

Mr. Manley: That's one of the two.

Chairperson Cardone: That's one of the two, that's one of the two.

Mr. Hughes: With the condition that we notify the Planning Board?

Ms. Drake: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: When we get to him, yes we will get to that.

Mr. Hughes: I just want to make sure doing the same thing here.






(Time Noted – 8:34 PM)


-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision: 8:37 PM)

BRIAN MC CUTCHEON /


179 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH

      B C & N CARPETS INC.


(60-3-14.2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to erect additional signage on the building.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Brian McCutcheon / B C & N Carpets seeking an area variance to erect additional signage on the building. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I would just like to note into the record that Mr. Goetze has been authorized to represent Mr. McCutcheon on this and he's been here for this for those two meetings. And so I would recommend approval for this with a note to the Planning Board if there is any involvement necessary.

Chairperson Cardone: With the reduced square footage because the original application is 89.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes. 

Ms. Drake: I'll second that motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Ms. Gennarelli: Okay approved with those conditions.

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE
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BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES
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JAMES MANLEY
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RUTH EATON
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DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 8:39 PM)


ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 23, 2012

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 8:39 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Has everyone the minutes. I don't know if everyone has had a chance to read them or not? Yes? Are there any additions or deletions?

Mr. Hughes: I did notice one thing there was a… something went on with the Barton residence. And they referred to Mr. Hues and it was Mr. Hoos not Hues.

Mr. Donovan: As Mr. Hoosee?

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Hoos. H-O-O-S it was written in the minutes as H-U-E-S, behind the Barton property.

Ms. Gennarelli: Oh, okay.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Hoos is a retired fireman from the City of Newburgh.

Ms. Gennarelli: I didn't know how to spell some of those words. Dave? I e-mailed you to Dave too.

Chairperson Cardone: That will be corrected.

Mr. Hughes: There was another one with that odd lot that was in the City and Town. I said that high line and it sounded like I said that tie line, well high line is the electric line and the tie is a survey line and there was no survey line on that thing however whoever drew the thing, drew the power line with the customary thing they use for a survey line so was a bit confusing. And I didn't want anybody to think that I was that nuts to mistake a survey line for power line.

Chairperson Cardone: So that needs to be corrected.

Mr. Hughes: I said that high line not that tie line.

Ms. Gennarelli: I think I picked that one up. 

Mr. Hughes: Okay, I didn't know if it came out.

Ms. Gennarelli: Did you read those minutes today?

Mr. Hughes: I did.

Ms. Gennarelli: You picked them up at like 4:30.

Mr. Manley: When it was on the high line. 

Mr. Hughes: I was not on the line yet but I was getting there.

Mr. Canfield: Speed reading is on the zip line.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll defend you though you weren’t here last month. 

Ms. Drake: Yeah really.

Ms. Gennarelli: That's right it was tough.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay do we have a motion to approve the minutes as amended?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye – All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to close the meeting?

Ms. Drake: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Second?

Mr. Maher: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The meeting is adjourned.
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